
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                           

MEETING AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE  
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

Wednesday, February 6, 2019 
6:30 P.M. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4. MINUTES – Review and approval of the minutes from the December 5, 2018 meeting. 

 
5. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

a)   Hinsdale Historical Society – Historic Plaque Program and Historic Tours App.  
b)  Village of Hinsdale Historic Preservation Regulations Review (cont. from 01.09.19) 

 
6.   OTHER BUSINESS 
  

7.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend any meetings and who 
require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in 
these meetings, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the meetings or the 
facilities, are requested to contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or 
by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons.  website:  www.villageofhinsdale.org 
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MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

December 5, 2018  

Memorial Hall – Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale 

6:30 P.M. 

             

Chairman Bohnen called the meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) to 

order at 6:30 p.m. on December 5, 2018, in Memorial Hall in the Memorial Building, 19 

East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale IL. 

 

Present:   Chairman Bohnen, Commissioner Prisby, Commissioner D’Arco,  

Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Weinberger, Commissioner 

Williams and Commissioner Haarlow 

Absent:    

Also Present: Chan Yu, Village Planner  

 Applicant for case:  HPC-08-2018 

 

 

Minutes 

Chairman Bohnen introduced the minutes from the November 7, 2018, meeting and asked 

for any comments. Commissioner D’Arco had one revision request to delete a mistake/line 

in the transcript. 

 

The HPC unanimously approved, 6-0 (1 absent) the minutes from the November 7, 

2018, meeting, as amended.   

 

 

Public Hearing 

Case HPC-08-2018 – 453 E. Sixth Street - Request for Certificate of 

Appropriateness to demolish and construct a new home in the Robbins Park 

Historic District. 

 

Please refer to Attachment 1, for the transcript for Public Hearing Case HPC-08-

2018  
 

The HPC unanimously approved the Certificate of Appropriateness, to demolish the home, 

6-0 (1 abstained).  

 

The HPC unanimously denied the Certificate of Appropriateness, for the proposed plan of 

the new home, 5-1 (1 abstained). Commissioner Williams stated that it is not compatible 

in the historic district. Commissioner D’Arco stated that it would change the character of 

the street. Commissioner Gonzalez stated he believes it would look great in Nantucket, and 

to that end, is a completely different style. Chairman Bohnen stated it departs from the 

continuity of the block, it’s a handsome house, but just not in the right spot. 

 
 

Approved 



Other Business 

Chairman Bohnen reviewed that he is reviewing the Title 14 (HPC) amendment document 

and is at a point where he would like to schedule a special meeting for the 2nd week in 

January to gain the input of the draft document.  

 

Chairman Bohnen also discussed in brief, that there is a difference in opinion between the 

HPC and members of the Plan Commission regarding signage in downtown Hinsdale. It 

needs to be flushed out and it needs to be determined who will have the say over signage in 

the historic downtown district.  

 

Commissioner Weinberger asked how does this get decided. 

 

Chairman Bohnen responded at the Board of Trustees level. 

 

Commissioner Prisby asked who is putting forth this request. 

 

Chairman Bohnen replied that he would like to seek a volunteer. 

 

Additional discussion on signage review history and signage ensued. 

 

 

Adjournment 

 

The HPC unanimously agreed to adjourn at 7:37 PM on December 5, 2018. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Chan Yu, Village Planner 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

        BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
       HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

IN THE MATTER OF:          )
                           )
CASE NO. HPC-08-2018       )        

                           )
453 East Sixth Street      ) 

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the continuation of the Public Hearing 

on the Certificate of Appropriateness in the 

above-entitled matter before the Hinsdale 

Historic Preservation Commission, at 19 East 

Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on the    

5th day of December, 2018, at 6:30 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. JOHN BOHNEN, Chairman; 

         MS. JANICE D'ARCO, Member;

         MR. BILL HAARLOW, Member; 

         MR. JAMES PRISBY, Member; 

         MS. SANDRA WILLIAMS, Member;

MS. SHANNON WEINBERGER; Member.  
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ALSO PRESENT:1
     MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner;2
     MR. PETER COULES, Donatelli & Coules.3

         * * *4
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  And now open the5

public hearing for a Certificate of6
Appropriateness, Case HPC-08-2018, 453 East7
Sixth Street.8

Anybody that's going to speak,9
please stand to be sworn in.06:36:10PM 10

     (Mr. Peter Coules sworn.)11
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Would you step to the12

microphone, Mr. Coules.13
MR. COULES:  Sure.  Peter Coules on14

behalf of --  They are actually called Rebrag,15
Inc., that owns the property.  It's Garber16
backwards.  They are the contractors that own17
the property.  They have a company that owns the18
dirt when they buy the dirt.19

This property was, I guess, built06:36:37PM 20
in 1953.  I thought it was the '60s or '70s21
because they had done remodeling on this house22

3

in that time frame because the right side of the1
house --  And we will get to the inside in a2
minute.  This is the outside of the property.3
It's a through lot.  The property itself is4
gorgeous.5

The right side of the house when6
you go in, and you'll see a picture, is the7
house ended at those windows.  And they framed8
in the fireplace with wood and insulation and9
built like a sun room that's 6-feet wide at one06:37:04PM 10
point, and then it gets a little bit wider when11
the fireplace isn't there.  So there is a12
fireplace in what used to be the old external13
inside.  I don't know what year they did that.14
It was '60s or '70s, I can't find the permit for15
it.  When they framed that in, it's kind of16
interesting, because they put windows on the17
east side of the house.  And they are 6 feet18
wide, and the only place you can ever put any19
chair or couch is under the windows.  So they06:37:28PM 20
put windows where you can't even look out.  It's21
basically become a reading room because it's so22

4

small.1
And they also did the other side of2

the house.  And when they built the garage, the3
garage wasn't originally built attached to the4
house.  So they added like two additions that5
mirror the house.  The basement has never been6
finished.  It's a low ceiling, one of the creepy7
ones.  It hasn't been touched since that time.8
Inside it's still olive-colored toilets and9
sinks and everything in the house.06:37:52PM 10

This is the backyard.  You can see11
that garage was actually added, that wasn't part12
of the original property.  They had a detached13
garage originally going out to the back.  And14
then they filled in and extended the driveway in15
the '60s I think is when they did it.  And it16
made a very suburban tract-looking house, garage17
added on.  There is no detailing on it.  The18
rest of the house has some quoin detailing on19
the top, this has none.  So they didn't even06:38:21PM 20
match it to the actual house.  That's why I took21
that closer-up picture of the property.22

5

The kitchen is not an eat-in1
kitchen.  Cabinets and all that are still the2
original stuff that's been there.  It's not old3
enough to have any historical significance in4
the type of wood in that.  It's thin oak.  I can5
almost put my thumbs through it, the battens6
that came out sideways are still the old7
original.8

See, there is nothing special about9
the house on doorways or anything along those06:38:47PM 10
lines.  They left everything open.  So if this11
house was done as a colonial in the '50s, it12
should really have doors between rooms and the13
like.  Everything has been boxed and all the14
doors are all gone that were actually in the15
house, if they were ever in there at one point16
in time.17

This is that room.  When you look18
to the left side of it, that's a fireplace that19
they actually boxed in.  It's an exterior06:39:09PM 20
fireplace.  When you open it up, you can still21
see the cement, you know, bricks from the wall.22
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So I don't know how they did that or got away1
with it.  It's something that wouldn't be2
allowed today built the way it was built then3
because, like I said, they just attached4
insulation to it and put wood around it.5

That's the bedrooms upstairs.6
Everything is original.  The staircase is7
actually kind of dangerous and steep, something8
that probably wouldn't be allowed to be built,9
the risers, the way they are now.06:39:40PM 10

And that's the basement, and that's11
the nice side of the basement.  I walked all12
over, inside the house.  We are back to the13
original.14

I did want to show one other thing,15
which is the rendering of what's being proposed16
to be built there now is --  I'm trying to open17
it.  This house, which actually fits more, I18
believe, in the neighborhood.  I was very19
surprised that this 1953 house was named when it06:40:08PM 20
was listed when I got the report back from the21
Village.  Because, like I said, I'm not an22

7

architect; but I grew up in a colonial, that did1
not look like a colonial when you walked around2
the inside.  All the rooms were chopped up, and3
they weren't boxed.  Things have changed.  They4
weren't built by 2 by 2 or 4 by 4 up and down5
anymore.  The one staircase didn't even --  They6
went through one room to go to another room when7
they did the addition upstairs.  They went like8
into the dormer for like closets.  They are not9
rooms.06:40:37PM 10

So that's the house as it is now,11
it was in such very bad shape.  They tried to12
orientate it on the lot the same way, use the13
back drive coming up through Woodside, facing14
the house the same way.  Three side yard15
setbacks, you know, they have three frames; not16
looking for any variances.17

I brought the product in.  It's18
going to be a light gray.  There is actually a19
buyer for the home already once we get06:40:58PM 20
everything going.  They are going to cedar21
shingle the whole house, and then the roof is22

8

also going to be also wood.  So the whole house1
is being built in wood framing on the outside2
with stone on the bottom.  And that's what they3
are proposing to do.  It's a really --  They4
call it light gray.  But to me, I really thought5
it was an off-white to be honest with you when I6
first saw the picture.  It's almost a cream, it7
was such a light gray, that they are utilizing8
to build this house.  And I believe everyone has9
a color rendition of it in their packets06:41:28PM 10
tonight.11

They are just trying to maximize12
the use of the --  It's a beautiful front yard,13
and it's a beautiful back yard.  I really14
thought this was a really nice piece of15
property.  Like I said, when I went inside the16
house, I was kind of surprised that no one has17
ever done anything in 40 years to the inside of18
this house.19

MR. PRISBY:  Where is the house to the06:41:52PM 20
west in relation to the streetscape?  Is it21
pretty much in line with this house?22

9

MR. COULES:  Correct.  You are not1
forward.  This house is not in front of that2
house at all.3

MR. PRISBY:  Pretty much lined up?4
MR. COULES:  Pretty much lined up.5
MR. PRISBY:  You can see that on the6

site plan.7
MR. COULES:  Right.  It would be within8

3 feet, 2 feet.  This one might be back a hair9
more by 2 or 3 feet, but it's not in front06:42:07PM 10
actually.11

MS. WILLIAMS:  But doesn't the front12
porch extend beyond the setback?13

MR. COULES:  No.14
MS. WILLIAMS:  No?  Because I couldn't15

really see it.  It looked like it did.16
MR. COULES:  No, it does not.  There17

are no variances, no.18
MS. WILLIAMS:  The porch included is19

inside?06:42:23PM 20
MR. COULES:  Correct.  They did it that21

way also.  This rendering doesn't show it.22
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That's why I showed the one picture.  There is1
one nice tree.  That's why they are doing a2
curved walkway.  There is a very nice oak in the3
front yard that's being retained.4

I don't personally think they are5
going to kill it because it's outside the drip6
line where the porch and the house starts.  It's7
pretty far back.  It's a pretty nice size front8
yard.9

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Thank you,06:43:03PM 10
Mr. Coules.11

Any comments?12
MS. D'ARCO:  I have a comment.13
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Sure.14
MS. D'ARCO:  I think this is a lovely15

home.  It's, I think, reflective of all the16
newer homes that are being built in the area17
where you are taking a smaller home on a big lot18
and building out as much as you can.19

We have seen it on 6th Street,06:43:26PM 20
actually by Garber right across the street on21
the south side of 6th Street, right in the22

11

middle, that used to be an old frame house that1
sat on the market for a long time.  There was no2
buyers because it was abandoned for a while.3

MR. COULES:  Yes.4
MS. D'ARCO:  I think there was damage5

to the house to the point where I think that it6
needed to probably get torn down.7

But the streetscape, there is not a8
house on that block that looks like this other9
than the newer home that Garber just built.06:43:48PM 10
Everything else, I would say the house next to11
the Garber's, which was the Rancic's home a few12
years ago, that was probably the newest home on13
the block.  And the one on the corner, but14
that's a more modest size.15

So when I look at the streetscape16
on the north side of 6th Street, there is no17
home that looks like this.  They are all smaller18
homes; or some are bigger but where there is19
land, and these houses all are unique in06:44:20PM 20
character.  They are all brick.  The house next21
to this house is a Zook home.22

12

MR. COULES:  Right.1
MS. D'ARCO:  The house after that is2

the Biggert's old house that was landmarked and3
expanded and preserved.  Two smaller houses in4
between that are brick, and then a colonial on5
the corner.6

And so while I think this house is7
beautiful, I think it just --  It changes the8
character of the street.  And the direction,9
again -- and we pose this question every time we06:44:49PM 10
are at these meetings -- is if we are okay11
having blocks be transformed into this because12
this is what's happening, then we need to be at13
peace with that.14

But I was in this home.  I actually15
live on the block for the record.  I live right16
across the street from this home.  I was in the17
home when the owner died.  It was one owner.18
They raised a family there.  No doubt the house19
needs updating, but any house that was built in06:45:20PM 20
the '50s is going to need updating.  So I don't21
think that's a legitimate reason to tear down a22

13

home when our goal is to preserve.  Anything1
that's built in the late '50s can be considered2
historical.  It doesn't have to be 100 years3
old.4

So I guess my concern, and I will5
pose this to the rest of the committee, is we6
are going to --  If you go down that street,7
there are probably other houses that will get8
torn down because we are setting a precedent and9
we are allowing it to happen.  It's a coveted06:45:51PM 10
street because it's a brick-paved road.  It's in11
a nice block.12

So I'm just concerned.  I welcome13
new homes.  I think they can help appreciate14
everyone's property on the block.  You know, it15
just brings an added element of beauty to the16
street.  But if that's what we are going for,17
then I think we need to figure that out because,18
you know, it's a tough one.  It's a tough one.19
I understand, you know, that the house needs06:46:25PM 20
updates.  I get it.  But so do all old homes.21

MR. COULES:  I understand that but --22
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         MS. D'ARCO:  Do we just tear them down1
because --2

MR. COULES:  Yes.  I have been in many3
old homes that I think are worth preserving.4
But this old home, I don't believe it's all that5
old.  But this home when you went through it6
with the way it's chopped up inside, truthfully7
the rooms were really small when they did those8
two additions, one on each end.  And it's a 3-9
bedroom home with 2 baths.06:46:53PM 10

MS. D'ARCO:  Right.11
MR. COULES:  No, no ability at all to12

finish the basement.  The ceiling is not even13
high enough to finish it.  They built a basement14
ceiling that unfinished is under 6'2".  Yes.15

So that's why I'm saying, I don't16
know how --  The permitting process today would17
never have allowed either of those additions to18
be built the way it was, and they would be in19
front of you.  And I think it would be more of a06:47:17PM 20
livable house.  I was very surprised by how21
chopped up and actually beat up this house was22

15

besides just saying you need to replace toilets1
and sinks and that.  There is nothing you can do2
with that right side, that doesn't even meet3
code as far as I'm concerned with the way it's4
built.5

MS. D'ARCO:  I agree.  It's a small6
home.7

MR. COULES:  Yes.8
MS. D'ARCO:  With today's standards,9

you need to rehab, rebuild that house, rehab and06:47:37PM 10
expand if you want to preserve it.11

MR. COULES:  Correct.12
MS. D'ARCO:  But it's possible to13

expand, preserve and expand, because they have14
the space.  It is a through street.  It goes all15
the way to Woodside.  I mean that is a16
wonderful, dreamy lot for a lot of people.17

And I guess what I'm seeing is lots18
being bought in southeast -- call it for a19
million plus, and then being sold at 3 or 4.06:48:01PM 20
And, you know, it's --  This is the price we are21
paying, right?22

16

If we want to be in the1
preservation business, you know, there is2
conflicting interests with economic interests;3
right?  And so I just, I'm just concerned as to,4
it continues to happen, continues to happen.5
And I think we just need to ask ourselves how we6
are going to proceed here because --7

MR. COULES:  I think the only security8
you really have on this property --  And I agree9
that this lot is very coveted, it's a gorgeous06:48:37PM 10
lot.11

MS. D'ARCO:  Beautiful lot.12
MR. COULES:  With having three faces on13

it, there is only so much they can actually14
build on this lot.  This lot can't even be15
maximized.16

MS. D'ARCO:  Well, it would go up.17
MR. COULES:  They are not even going18

up.19
MS. D'ARCO:  Well, this doesn't look06:48:51PM 20

high.  But relative to everything else on the21
street, it's high because even the new home on22

17

the other -- on the south side of 6th Street1
looks really grand.  It looks very tall.2

MR. COULES:  Yes, it does look tall.3
MS. D'ARCO:  It's looks huge.  It's4

beautiful, but it's not in line with everything5
else on the street, you know, on the street.  So6
it's like, wow, there is a brand-new big house;7
and everything else has been here for a while.8
So, you know, I don't know.  I don't know.  Just9
food for thought.06:49:18PM 10

John, you know the street very11
well.12

MS. WILLIAMS:  Well, I think you make a13
good point because our job is to preserve the14
character of the district.  And we are not15
focusing necessarily on this one particular16
home, we have to focus on the district.  So you17
are looking for more compatible construction.18
New construction should be more compatible.  I19
think that's even spelled out in our purpose.06:49:42PM 20

MR. COULES:  Yes.21
MS. WILLIAMS:  I think that's where you22
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are going with the whole conversation.  And1
again, it's not this individual house.  It is2
this plan in the district that I think you and I3
also have a concern with.4

MS. D'ARCO:  I feel like we are kind of5
at a crossroads with --6

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  Yes.  I agree.  I7
agree.  And with the brick street, what is8
compatible about this house on that street in9
that district?  And the only reason why we are06:50:10PM 10
even looking at this is because it is a historic11
district, which makes me wonder if architects12
when they come to design homes in the historic13
district if they even consider that a factor;14
and I don't know.15

MS. D'ARCO:  No.16
MS. WILLIAMS:  But from what we have17

seen, you have to ask yourself do they even18
realize it's in a historic district before they19
start to draw.06:50:34PM 20

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Was this home21
designed for an end user?22

19

MR. COULES:  Yes.1
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So it was a committed2

end user at the beginning, and this is the home3
that they designed?4

MR. COULES:  Correct.5
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  It wasn't halfway6

down the road and somebody came upon the7
project?8

MR. COULES:  I do not know that answer.9
MS. D'ARCO:  I don't think that this06:50:53PM 10

has closed, has it?11
MR. COULES:  To the end user?12
MS. D'ARCO:  The sale of this property.13
MR. COULES:  To the end user?14
MS. D'ARCO:  Yes.15
MR. COULES:  No.  They are under16

contract.17
MS. D' Arco:  Yes.18
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Well, it's a19

conundrum because people are not building red06:51:08PM 20
brick, federal-type houses.21

MR. COULES:  Correct.22

20

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  In fact, they are1
taking all the red brick houses and painting2
them white.3

MR. COULES:  That is true.4
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Yes.5
MS. D'ARCO:  Even the new ones.6
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Just about every red7

brick house in town is subject to a paint job8
these days.  But it's unfortunate that we find9
ourselves living in a society with a bunch of06:51:28PM 10
lemmings where everybody runs after the one in11
front of them; and all the sudden they realize12
there is a cliff there, and they turn and go the13
other away.14

We are going to be sick and tired15
of board and batten white houses with black16
windows, if we are not already.  We are going to17
be sick of red brick houses painted white, if we18
are not already; and it's a problem.19

MR. COULES:  And I agree, and to06:51:53PM 20
Janice's point, I agree it's a huge problem when21
people pay the kind of money they do for these22

21

lots, they have to built out a property.  I1
actually think that this house --  If this lot2
was on a different block, and it wasn't on a3
corner, this house could be 800 to 1,000 more4
square feet without batting an eye.5

But by being on a corner, it6
shrinks it up.  And the way they pushed --  They7
have left a huge back yard.  You can see, they8
left a whole back yard.  They are not really9
increasing very much at all the footprint of the06:52:24PM 10
existing home that's there now.  But they are11
utilizing the space a little more by filling in12
what used to be --  There are some outdoor13
patios that are there now that are all different14
level decks that were built over time.  There is15
a wood one in the middle.  There is a cement one16
to the left, that area is being filled in; but17
that already is impervious surface.  They are18
not really increasing a lot of the use of that19
property.06:52:46PM 20

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I think what I'm21
hearing is the concern of the Commission is not22

Attachment 1 - HPC 12.05.18 Minutes



7 of 13 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

22

so much --1
MS. D'ARCO:  The actual house.2
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  -- the actual houses.3
MR. COULES:  The style.4
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  The compatibility of5

it.  And you would have to go to the next block6
to Oak Street and 6th, the one that burned, to7
find the next wood frame house of this size.8

MR. COULES:  Correct.9
MS. WEINBERGER:  And it's one of our06:53:13PM 10

brick streets, which is --11
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I agree.12
MS. D'ARCO:  I just walked that street.13

I mean there is only --14
MR. GONZALEZ:  Do you have any idea why15

they decided to go with this Texan style?16
MR. COULES:  No.17
MR. GONZALEZ:  Because sometimes it's18

hard.  I hear from time to time that these white19
houses are basically driven by Realtors06:53:31PM 20
according to when --  When you ask the21
architect, the architect says, Well, the22

23

developer wanted that one.  When you ask the1
developer, he says, Well, my Realtor suggested2
that because that sells.3

MR. COULES:  This is not a spec home.4
MR. GONZALEZ:  No, no.  I'm just making5

an example.  I'm not saying --6
MR. COULES:  I agree with you on that.7

They all want to build --8
MR. GONZALEZ:  I'm not saying this is9

for that specific.  Because I see this house,06:53:51PM 10
and I think that would look great in Nantucket;11
so it's a completely different style.12

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  We are back to the13
Tiburan coastal look, which we got saturated14
with up on the north side for years.15

MR. GONZALEZ:  Yes.16
MR. COULES:  This is a Nantucket-17

looking home.  I agree with Frank on that.18
MS. D'ARCO:  And I like the Nantucket.19
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  It's interesting to06:54:16PM 20

me that all the homes on the north side of that21
block were deemed significant by --22

24

MS. D'ARCO:  Well, you've got a Zook1
home next door.  That's historical.2

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  You have a Zook home3
next to it.  You have a ranch.  Then you have4
Biggert's.  Then you have a red brick home.5

MR. COULES:  The one between Zook and6
Biggert's, yes.7

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So this departs from8
the continuity of that block.  I have to agree9
with that.06:54:45PM 10

MR. COULES:  I just don't see that you11
ever will have someone walk back in and build a12
colonial on that property personally.  Maybe I'm13
wrong.  I just don't see people building the red14
brick.  I agree with you.  I grew up in a small15
one.  I grew up in a colonial and was very16
happy.  This is just not what people --17

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I don't think this18
house is rehabable.19

MR. COULES:  No, it's not.06:55:03PM 20
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I don't think that's21

a reasonable suggestion.  I think from what I22

25

can garner, this house probably has lived its1
usefulness.  And it was cobbled up a little2
along the way.  And so the fact that it's coming3
down is probably a fact of life.  It's just when4
we get all done building this how has it5
affected our block and our streetscape.6

MR. COULES:  It's easier for me to7
stand up here and say that there is at least8
somebody who is going to be living there who has9
picked this house for themselves.  This is not a06:55:38PM 10
spec.  I think with specs there is a lot more11
leeway.12

But I agree with you, there is13
often the same plan over and over and over14
again.15

MS. D'ARCO:  Maybe the other option was16
like maybe not a brick colonial but some type of17
brick or stone --  I don't know.18

MR. GONZALEZ:  Or stone or something,19
maybe a different material?06:55:57PM 20

MS. D'ARCO:  It just doesn't --  This21
home is going to pop on that street.22
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MR. GONZALEZ:  That means that the1
buyer, whoever is the buyer, potential buyer,2
would say, Oh, that looks different.  I don't3
know what they would say.  I'm sure they have4
seen a number of renderings, this is just one of5
many.6

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  It's a handsome7
house.  It just isn't in the right spot.8

MS. D'ARCO:  Right.9
MS. WILLIAMS:  It's just not compatible06:56:18PM 10

in the historic district.  That's,11
unfortunately, the issue here.12

And without design review13
guidelines or possibly even knowledge that the14
owner or architect had that they were dealing15
with a historic district property, you know, you16
get houses that are possibly not compatible.17

MS. WEINBERGER:  We have this18
conversation all the time.  We need to get in19
front of it.  We are behind it.  We need to get06:56:47PM 20
in front of this somehow.21

MR. PRISBY:  Well, notice I'm not22

27

saying anything?1
MS. WEINBERGER:  I did it for you this2

time.3
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  And I would also4

remind you that it was not so long ago that we5
had a design review commission and that6
addressed just these kinds of things.  For7
whatever reason, recession or I'm not really8
remembering exactly what, that commission kind9
of went by the by.06:57:17PM 10

But there were incentives that that11
commission would give builders if they would go12
to our historic society and go into the archives13
and see what Hinsdale liked and why they liked14
it.  And the premise was a very good premise for15
the commission.  I don't know why that fell.16
Through no fault of its own, I know that.17

So as we are reconstituting the18
preservation ordinance, which I will speak to19
later this evening, it may very well be that we06:57:52PM 20
should expand our purview a little bit to21
incorporate some design review.22

28

MR. COULES:  On a whole separate note1
on your point there, which has nothing to do2
with this house, some towns have gone to waiving3
permit fees if people build what they want.4

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Is that right?5
MR. COULES:  They have.6
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  I'm sure you have to7

incentivize people.8
MR. COULES:  Yes.  That's what some9

towns are getting ahead of if they have very old06:58:16PM 10
areas.  Rare but it's happening.11

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  We don't have things12
in place right now, and it's unfortunate we13
haven't reconstituted earlier.  But hopefully,14
we are in the process for getting that done for15
2019.16

But in any event, that all being17
said, do we have any other comments about this18
house?19

MS. D'ARCO:  No.06:58:40PM 20
MS. WEINBERGER:  I just want to say,21

you spoke very well on this piece.  That was a22

29

very well-said, important comment.  I appreciate1
it.2

MS. D'ARCO:  Thank you.  I mean I think3
it's reality.  It's not something that you or I4
or any of us can change at this point in time.5
And it's, you know, without --  Lacking some of6
these guidelines, without contractors and7
architects being educated on it, there is not8
much we can do right now today.9

But I see this as a two-part,06:59:14PM 10
right?  You approve the demolition, and then11
approve the proposed plan so we can vote.12

We are going to vote on the13
demolition of the home, one.  And then two is14
the proposed plan for the house.15

     (Enter Mr. Bill Haarlow.)16
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  So that all being17

said, are we prepared to have a motion at this18
point?19

MS. D'ARCO:  I could motion to demolish06:59:57PM 20
the house, tear down.21

CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Is there a second,22
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please.1
MR. GONZALEZ:  Second.2
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  All in favor?3

     (A chorus of ayes.)4
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Okay.  Next phase.5
MS. D'ARCO:  I motion not to approve6

the proposed plan for the home.  The current7
design, I just don't believe it's in line with8
this current streetscape.9

MR. COULES:  Can you, please, make that07:00:28PM 10
motion as a positive and then vote negative?11
Otherwise --12

MS. D'ARCO:  Then I can't.  Why doesn't13
someone else start with a positive and then --14

MR. COULES:  No, because that's what15
you are supposed to, obviously, in Robert's16
Rules, I thought you are to make it as a vote to17
approve; and then you vote no, if you want to18
vote no.19

MS. D'ARCO:  Then somebody else who is07:00:45PM 20
going to approve it --21

MR. COULES:  Am I right, Chan?22

31

MR. YU:  You can make a motion to deny1
it.2

MR. COULES:  Okay.3
MR. YU:  Yes.4
MS. D'ARCO:  So I motion to deny the5

proposed plan.6
MR. COULES:  Thank you.7
MS. D'ARCO:  Given that on the grounds8

that it doesn't feel like it's compatible with9
the current streetscape.07:01:03PM 10

And the reason, and I just want to11
preface this by saying that it's not the house12
itself, I don't have an issue with the home.13
It's more the process that we are going through,14
and that's pretty much it so --15

MS. WEINBERGER:  Second.16
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  We have a motion and17

a second.18
All those in favor for the motion,19

please say aye.07:01:29PM 20
MR. GONZALEZ:  Aye.21
MS. WEINBERGER:  Aye.22

32

MS. WILLIAMS:  Aye.1
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Opposed?2
MR. PRISBY:  Nay.3
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Motion is denied.4
MR. COULES:  No.  The motion is5

granted.6
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  The motion is7

granted.8
MR. COULES:  That's why I wanted to9

keep it that way.07:01:45PM 10
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  The motion to deny is11

granted.12
MR. COULES:  That's why I wanted to13

keep it straight.  Thank you.14
CHAIRMAN BOHNEN:  Thank you,15

Mr. Coules.16
We will now close the public17

hearing.18
           * * *19

(Which were all the proceedings had20
               in the above-entitled cause.)21

22
33

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss.
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

         I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR,
do hereby certify that I am a court reporter
doing business in the State of Illinois, that I
reported in shorthand the testimony given at the
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is
a true and correct transcript of my shorthand
notes so taken as aforesaid.

              __________________________________
                Janice H. Heinemann CSR, RDR, CRR
                License No 084-001391

Attachment 1 - HPC 12.05.18 Minutes



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 10 of 13 sheets 

'

'50s [3] - 5:12, 12:21, 
13:2

'60s [1] - 4:16

1

1,000  [1] - 21:4
100  [1] - 13:3
1953  [1] - 6:20

2

2 [5] - 7:5, 9:9, 9:10, 
14:10

2019  [1] - 28:16

3

3 [4] - 9:9, 9:10, 14:9, 
15:20

4

4 [3] - 7:5, 15:20
40  [1] - 8:18

6

6'2" [1] - 14:15
6th [5] - 10:20, 10:22, 

11:17, 17:1, 22:7

8

800  [1] - 21:4

A

abandoned  [1] - 11:3
ability  [1] - 14:12
above -entitled  [1] - 

32:21
according  [1] - 22:21
actual  [3] - 4:21, 22:2, 

22:3
added  [4] - 4:5, 4:12, 

4:18, 13:16
addition  [1] - 7:8
additions  [3] - 4:5, 

14:9, 14:18
addressed  [1] - 27:7
affected  [1] - 25:6
ago  [2] - 11:13, 27:5
agree  [12] - 15:6, 16:9, 

18:7, 18:8, 20:20, 
20:21, 22:12, 23:7, 
23:18, 24:9, 24:15, 
25:13

ahead  [1] - 28:10
allowed  [3] - 6:3, 6:9, 

14:18

allowing  [1] - 13:10
almost  [2] - 5:6, 8:7
answer  [1] - 19:9
appreciate  [2] - 13:14, 

29:1
approve  [5] - 29:11, 

29:12, 30:6, 30:18, 
30:21

architect  [4] - 7:1, 
22:22, 26:15

architects  [2] - 18:12, 
29:8

archives  [1] - 27:13
Arco  [1] - 19:18
area  [2] - 10:17, 21:17
areas  [1] - 28:11
attached  [2] - 4:4, 6:4
aye  [1] - 31:20
Aye [3] - 31:21, 31:22, 

32:1
ayes  [1] - 30:4

B

backyard  [1] - 4:11
bad  [1] - 7:12
basement  [5] - 4:6, 

6:11, 6:12, 14:13, 
14:14

baths  [1] - 14:10
batten  [1] - 20:16
battens  [1] - 5:6
batting  [1] - 21:5
beat  [1] - 14:22
beautiful  [5] - 8:13, 

8:14, 12:8, 16:12, 
17:5

beauty  [1] - 13:16
bedroom  [1] - 14:10
bedrooms  [1] - 6:6
beginning  [1] - 19:3
behind  [1] - 26:20
between  [3] - 5:13, 

12:5, 24:6
beyond  [1] - 9:13
big  [2] - 10:18, 17:7
bigger  [1] - 11:19
Biggert 's [3] - 12:3, 

24:5, 24:7
Bill  [1] - 29:16
bit  [1] - 27:21
black  [1] - 20:16
block  [10] - 11:9, 

11:14, 12:16, 13:12, 
13:15, 21:3, 22:6, 
23:22, 24:9, 25:6

blocks  [1] - 12:12
board  [1] - 20:16
BOHNEN  [34] - 10:10, 

10:14, 18:21, 19:2, 

19:6, 19:19, 20:1, 
20:5, 20:7, 21:21, 
22:3, 22:5, 22:12, 
23:13, 23:20, 24:3, 
24:8, 24:18, 24:21, 
26:7, 27:4, 28:5, 
28:7, 28:12, 29:17, 
29:22, 30:3, 30:5, 
31:17, 32:2, 32:4, 
32:7, 32:11, 32:15

bottom  [1] - 8:3
bought  [1] - 15:19
boxed  [3] - 5:14, 5:20, 

7:4
brand  [1] - 17:7
brand -new  [1] - 17:7
brick  [13] - 11:21, 

12:5, 13:11, 18:8, 
19:21, 20:2, 20:8, 
20:18, 22:11, 24:5, 
24:15, 25:17, 25:18

brick -paved  [1] - 
13:11

bricks  [1] - 5:22
brings  [1] - 13:16
brought  [1] - 7:18
build  [5] - 8:9, 16:15, 

23:8, 24:12, 28:4
builders  [1] - 27:12
building  [4] - 10:19, 

19:20, 24:14, 25:5
built  [17] - 4:3, 4:4, 

6:3, 6:9, 6:17, 7:5, 
8:2, 10:17, 11:10, 
12:20, 13:2, 14:14, 
14:19, 15:5, 21:1, 
21:15

bunch  [1] - 20:10
burned  [1] - 22:7
business  [1] - 16:2
buyer  [4] - 7:20, 26:2
buyers  [1] - 11:3

C

cabinets  [1] - 5:2
cedar  [1] - 7:21
ceiling  [3] - 4:7, 14:13, 

14:15
cement  [2] - 5:22, 

21:16
CHAIRMAN  [34] - 

10:10, 10:14, 18:21, 
19:2, 19:6, 19:19, 
20:1, 20:5, 20:7, 
21:21, 22:3, 22:5, 
22:12, 23:13, 23:20, 
24:3, 24:8, 24:18, 
24:21, 26:7, 27:4, 
28:5, 28:7, 28:12, 

29:17, 29:22, 30:3, 
30:5, 31:17, 32:2, 
32:4, 32:7, 32:11, 
32:15

Chan  [1] - 30:22
change  [1] - 29:5
changed  [1] - 7:4
changes  [1] - 12:8
character  [3] - 11:21, 

12:9, 17:15
chopped  [3] - 7:3, 

14:7, 14:22
chorus  [1] - 30:4
cliff  [1] - 20:13
close  [1] - 32:17
closed  [1] - 19:11
closer  [1] - 4:22
closer -up  [1] - 4:22
closets  [1] - 7:9
coastal  [1] - 23:14
cobbled  [1] - 25:2
code  [1] - 15:4
colonial  [7] - 5:12, 

7:1, 7:2, 12:5, 24:13, 
24:16, 25:17

color  [1] - 8:10
colored  [1] - 4:9
coming  [2] - 7:14, 

25:3
comment  [2] - 10:13, 

29:1
comments  [2] - 10:12, 

28:18
commission  [4] - 

27:6, 27:9, 27:12, 
27:16

Commission  [1] - 
21:22

committed  [1] - 19:2
committee  [1] - 13:6
compatibility  [1] - 

22:5
compatible  [6] - 

17:18, 17:19, 18:9, 
26:10, 26:17, 31:9

completely  [1] - 23:12
concern  [3] - 13:5, 

18:4, 21:22
concerned  [3] - 13:13, 

15:4, 16:4
conflicting  [1] - 16:3
consider  [1] - 18:14
considered  [1] - 13:2
construction  [2] - 

17:18, 17:19
continues  [2] - 16:5
continuity  [1] - 24:9
contract  [1] - 19:17
contractors  [1] - 29:7
conundrum  [1] - 

34

19:20
conversation  [2] - 

18:1, 26:19
corner  [4] - 11:14, 

12:6, 21:4, 21:6
correct  [5] - 9:1, 9:21, 

19:5, 19:22, 22:9
Correct  [1] - 15:12
Coules  [2] - 10:11, 

32:16
COULES  [48] - 9:1, 

9:5, 9:8, 9:14, 9:17, 
9:21, 11:4, 12:1, 
13:22, 14:3, 14:12, 
15:8, 15:12, 16:8, 
16:13, 16:18, 17:3, 
17:21, 19:1, 19:5, 
19:9, 19:12, 19:14, 
19:16, 19:22, 20:4, 
20:20, 22:4, 22:9, 
22:17, 23:4, 23:7, 
23:17, 24:6, 24:11, 
24:20, 25:7, 28:1, 
28:6, 28:9, 30:10, 
30:15, 30:22, 31:3, 
31:7, 32:5, 32:9, 
32:13

coveted  [2] - 13:10, 
16:10

cream  [1] - 8:7
creepy  [1] - 4:7
crossroads  [1] - 18:6
current  [3] - 30:7, 

30:9, 31:10
curved  [1] - 10:3

D

d' [1] - 19:18
D'ARCO  [34] - 10:13, 

10:15, 11:5, 12:2, 
14:1, 14:11, 15:6, 
15:9, 15:13, 16:12, 
16:17, 16:20, 17:4, 
18:5, 18:16, 19:10, 
19:13, 19:15, 20:6, 
22:2, 22:13, 23:19, 
24:1, 25:16, 25:21, 
26:9, 28:20, 29:3, 
29:20, 30:6, 30:13, 
30:20, 31:5, 31:8

damage  [1] - 11:5
dangerous  [1] - 6:8
days  [1] - 20:9
dealing  [1] - 26:15
decided  [1] - 22:16
decks  [1] - 21:15
deemed  [1] - 23:22
demolish  [1] - 29:20
demolition  [2] - 29:11, 

Attachment 1 - HPC 12.05.18 Minutes



11 of 13 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

29:14
denied  [1] - 32:4
deny  [3] - 31:1, 31:5, 

32:11
departs  [1] - 24:8
design  [5] - 18:13, 

26:13, 27:6, 27:22, 
30:8

designed  [2] - 18:22, 
19:4

detached  [1] - 4:13
detailing  [2] - 4:18, 

4:19
developer  [2] - 23:1, 

23:2
died  [1] - 12:18
different  [5] - 21:3, 

21:14, 23:12, 25:20, 
26:3

direction  [1] - 12:9
district  [9] - 17:15, 

17:17, 18:3, 18:10, 
18:12, 18:14, 18:19, 
26:11, 26:16

done  [4] - 5:12, 8:18, 
25:5, 28:15

door  [1] - 24:2
doors  [2] - 5:13, 5:15
doorways  [1] - 5:10
dormer  [1] - 7:9
doubt  [1] - 12:19
down  [9] - 7:5, 11:7, 

12:22, 13:7, 13:9, 
14:1, 19:7, 25:4, 
29:21

draw  [1] - 18:20
dreamy  [1] - 15:17
drip  [1] - 10:6
drive  [1] - 7:14
driven  [1] - 22:20
driveway  [1] - 4:15

E

easier  [1] - 25:7
eat  [1] - 5:1
eat-in [1] - 5:1
economic  [1] - 16:3
educated  [1] - 29:8
either  [1] - 14:18
element  [1] - 13:16
end  [5] - 14:9, 18:22, 

19:3, 19:12, 19:14
Enter  [1] - 29:16
entitled  [1] - 32:21
evening  [1] - 27:20
event  [1] - 28:17
exactly  [1] - 27:9
example  [1] - 23:6
existing  [1] - 21:11

expand  [4] - 15:11, 
15:14, 27:21

expanded  [1] - 12:4
extend  [1] - 9:13
extended  [1] - 4:15
exterior  [1] - 5:20
eye  [1] - 21:5

F

faces  [1] - 16:13
facing  [1] - 7:14
fact  [3] - 20:1, 25:3, 

25:4
factor  [1] - 18:14
family  [1] - 12:19
far  [2] - 10:8, 15:4
fault  [1] - 27:17
favor  [2] - 30:3, 31:19
federal  [1] - 19:21
federal -type  [1] - 

19:21
fees  [1] - 28:4
feet  [4] - 9:9, 9:10, 

21:5
fell  [1] - 27:16
few  [1] - 11:12
figure  [1] - 13:18
filled  [2] - 4:15, 21:17
filling  [1] - 21:12
finish  [2] - 14:13, 

14:14
finished  [1] - 4:7
fireplace  [2] - 5:19, 

5:21
first  [1] - 8:7
fits  [1] - 6:18
focus  [1] - 17:17
focusing  [1] - 17:16
food  [1] - 17:10
footprint  [1] - 21:10
forward  [1] - 9:2
frame  [2] - 11:1, 22:8
frames  [1] - 7:16
framing  [1] - 8:2
Frank  [1] - 23:18
front  [10] - 8:13, 9:2, 

9:10, 9:12, 10:4, 
10:8, 14:20, 20:12, 
26:20, 26:21

G

garage  [5] - 4:3, 4:4, 
4:12, 4:14, 4:17

Garber  [2] - 10:21, 
11:10

Garber 's [1] - 11:12
garner  [1] - 25:1
given  [1] - 31:8

goal  [1] - 13:1
GONZALEZ  [9] - 

22:15, 22:18, 23:5, 
23:9, 23:16, 25:19, 
26:1, 30:2, 31:21

gorgeous  [1] - 16:10
grand  [1] - 17:2
granted  [3] - 32:6, 

32:8, 32:12
gray  [3] - 7:19, 8:5, 

8:8
great  [1] - 23:11
grew  [3] - 7:1, 24:15, 

24:16
grounds  [1] - 31:8
guess  [2] - 13:5, 15:18
guidelines  [2] - 26:14, 

29:7

H

Haarlow  [1] - 29:16
hair  [1] - 9:9
halfway  [1] - 19:6
handsome  [1] - 26:7
happy  [1] - 24:17
hard  [1] - 22:19
hear  [1] - 22:19
hearing  [2] - 21:22, 

32:18
help  [1] - 13:14
high  [3] - 14:14, 

16:21, 16:22
Hinsdale  [1] - 27:14
historic  [6] - 18:11, 

18:13, 18:19, 26:11, 
26:16, 27:13

historical  [3] - 5:4, 
13:3, 24:2

home  [30] - 7:20, 
10:16, 10:18, 11:10, 
11:12, 11:13, 11:18, 
11:22, 12:15, 12:17, 
12:18, 13:1, 14:5, 
14:6, 14:10, 15:7, 
16:22, 17:17, 18:21, 
19:3, 21:11, 23:4, 
23:18, 24:2, 24:3, 
24:5, 25:22, 29:14, 
30:7, 31:13

homes  [7] - 10:17, 
11:19, 13:14, 13:21, 
14:4, 18:13, 23:21

honest  [1] - 8:6
hopefully  [1] - 28:14
house  [58] - 4:3, 4:5, 

4:6, 4:10, 4:17, 4:19, 
4:21, 5:10, 5:12, 
5:16, 6:13, 6:18, 
6:20, 7:11, 7:15, 

7:22, 8:1, 8:9, 8:17, 
8:19, 8:20, 8:22, 9:2, 
9:3, 10:7, 11:1, 11:6, 
11:9, 11:11, 11:21, 
11:22, 12:2, 12:3, 
12:7, 12:19, 12:20, 
13:20, 14:21, 14:22, 
15:10, 17:7, 18:2, 
18:9, 20:8, 21:2, 
21:4, 22:2, 22:8, 
23:10, 24:19, 25:1, 
25:10, 26:8, 28:3, 
28:19, 29:15, 29:21, 
31:12

houses  [10] - 11:20, 
12:4, 13:8, 19:21, 
20:2, 20:16, 20:18, 
22:3, 22:20, 26:17

huge  [3] - 17:4, 20:21, 
21:8

I

idea  [1] - 22:15
impervious  [1] - 21:18
important  [1] - 29:1
incentives  [1] - 27:11
incentivize  [1] - 28:8
included  [1] - 9:19
incorporate  [1] - 

27:22
increasing  [2] - 21:10, 

21:19
individual  [1] - 18:2
inside  [7] - 4:9, 6:13, 

7:3, 8:16, 8:18, 9:20, 
14:7

insulation  [1] - 6:5
interesting  [1] - 23:20
interests  [2] - 16:3
issue  [2] - 26:12, 

31:13
itself  [1] - 31:13

J

Janice 's [1] - 20:21
job  [2] - 17:14, 20:8
John  [1] - 17:11

K

keep  [2] - 32:10, 32:14
kill  [1] - 10:6
kind  [5] - 6:8, 8:17, 

18:5, 20:22, 27:9
kinds  [1] - 27:7
kitchen  [2] - 5:1, 5:2
knowledge  [1] - 26:14

35

L

Lacking  [1] - 29:6
land  [1] - 11:20
landmarked  [1] - 12:3
late  [1] - 13:2
least  [1] - 25:8
leeway  [1] - 25:12
left  [5] - 5:11, 5:19, 

21:8, 21:9, 21:17
legitimate  [1] - 12:22
lemmings  [1] - 20:11
level  [1] - 21:15
life  [1] - 25:4
light  [3] - 7:19, 8:5, 

8:8
line  [4] - 8:22, 10:7, 

17:5, 30:8
lined  [2] - 9:4, 9:5
lines  [1] - 5:11
listed  [1] - 6:21
livable  [1] - 14:21
live  [2] - 12:16
lived  [1] - 25:1
living  [2] - 20:10, 25:9
look  [7] - 5:18, 7:2, 

11:16, 16:20, 17:3, 
23:11, 23:14

looked  [1] - 9:16
looking  [5] - 4:17, 

7:17, 17:18, 18:11, 
23:18

looks  [6] - 11:9, 11:18, 
17:2, 17:4, 26:3

lovely  [1] - 10:15
low  [1] - 4:7

M

market  [1] - 11:2
match  [1] - 4:21
material  [1] - 25:20
maximize  [1] - 8:12
maximized  [1] - 16:16
mean  [3] - 15:16, 

22:14, 29:3
means  [1] - 26:1
meet  [1] - 15:3
meetings  [1] - 12:11
middle  [2] - 11:1, 

21:16
might  [1] - 9:9
million  [1] - 15:20
mirror  [1] - 4:6
modest  [1] - 11:15
money  [1] - 20:22
motion  [12] - 29:18, 

29:20, 30:6, 30:11, 
31:1, 31:5, 31:17, 
31:19, 32:4, 32:5, 

Attachment 1 - HPC 12.05.18 Minutes



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 12 of 13 sheets 

32:7, 32:11
MR  [64] - 8:20, 9:1, 

9:4, 9:5, 9:6, 9:8, 
9:14, 9:17, 9:21, 
11:4, 12:1, 13:22, 
14:3, 14:12, 15:8, 
15:12, 16:8, 16:13, 
16:18, 17:3, 17:21, 
19:1, 19:5, 19:9, 
19:12, 19:14, 19:16, 
19:22, 20:4, 20:20, 
22:4, 22:9, 22:15, 
22:17, 22:18, 23:4, 
23:5, 23:7, 23:9, 
23:16, 23:17, 24:6, 
24:11, 24:20, 25:7, 
25:19, 26:1, 26:22, 
28:1, 28:6, 28:9, 
30:2, 30:10, 30:15, 
30:22, 31:1, 31:3, 
31:4, 31:7, 31:21, 
32:3, 32:5, 32:9, 
32:13

MS  [50] - 9:12, 9:15, 
9:19, 10:13, 10:15, 
11:5, 12:2, 14:1, 
14:11, 15:6, 15:9, 
15:13, 16:12, 16:17, 
16:20, 17:4, 17:13, 
17:22, 18:5, 18:7, 
18:16, 18:17, 19:10, 
19:13, 19:15, 19:18, 
20:6, 22:2, 22:10, 
22:13, 23:19, 24:1, 
25:16, 25:21, 26:9, 
26:10, 26:18, 27:2, 
28:20, 28:21, 29:3, 
29:20, 30:6, 30:13, 
30:20, 31:5, 31:8, 
31:16, 31:22, 32:1

N

named  [1] - 6:20
Nantucket  [3] - 23:11, 

23:17, 23:19
nay  [1] - 32:3
necessarily  [1] - 

17:16
need  [8] - 12:13, 

12:21, 13:18, 15:1, 
15:10, 16:6, 26:19, 
26:20

needed  [1] - 11:7
needs  [2] - 12:20, 

13:20
negative  [1] - 30:11
neighborhood  [1] - 

6:19
never  [2] - 4:6, 14:18
new  [5] - 13:14, 16:22, 

17:7, 17:19, 20:6
newer  [2] - 10:17, 

11:10
newest  [1] - 11:13
next  [7] - 11:11, 11:21, 

22:6, 22:8, 24:2, 
24:4, 30:5

nice  [6] - 6:12, 8:15, 
10:2, 10:3, 10:8, 
13:12

none  [1] - 4:20
north  [3] - 11:17, 

23:15, 23:21
note  [1] - 28:1
nothing  [3] - 5:9, 15:2, 

28:2
notice  [1] - 26:22
number  [1] - 26:5

O

Oak  [1] - 22:7
oak  [2] - 5:5, 10:3
obviously  [1] - 30:16
off-white  [1] - 8:6
often  [1] - 25:14
old  [10] - 5:3, 5:7, 

11:1, 12:3, 13:4, 
13:21, 14:4, 14:5, 
14:6, 28:10

olive  [1] - 4:9
olive-colored  [1] - 4:9
once  [1] - 7:20
one  [25] - 4:7, 5:16, 

6:15, 7:6, 7:7, 8:17, 
9:9, 10:1, 10:2, 
11:14, 12:18, 13:19, 
14:9, 17:16, 20:11, 
21:16, 22:7, 22:10, 
23:1, 24:6, 24:16, 
26:5, 29:14

ones  [2] - 4:8, 20:6
open  [3] - 5:11, 5:21, 

6:17
opposed  [1] - 32:2
option  [1] - 25:16
ordinance  [1] - 27:19
orientate  [1] - 7:13
original  [5] - 4:13, 5:3, 

5:8, 6:7, 6:14
originally  [2] - 4:4, 

4:14
Otherwise  [1] - 30:12
ourselves  [2] - 16:6, 

20:10
outdoor  [1] - 21:13
outside  [2] - 8:2, 10:6
own  [1] - 27:17
owner  [3] - 12:18, 

26:15

P

packets  [1] - 8:10
paint  [1] - 20:8
painted  [1] - 20:18
painting  [1] - 20:2
part  [2] - 4:12, 29:10
particular  [1] - 17:16
patios  [1] - 21:14
paved  [1] - 13:11
pay  [1] - 20:22
paying  [1] - 15:22
peace  [1] - 12:14
people  [7] - 15:17, 

19:20, 20:22, 24:14, 
24:17, 28:4, 28:8

permit  [1] - 28:4
permitting  [1] - 14:17
personally  [2] - 10:5, 

24:13
phase  [1] - 30:5
picked  [1] - 25:10
picture  [3] - 4:22, 8:7, 

10:1
piece  [2] - 8:15, 28:22
place  [1] - 28:13
plan  [7] - 9:7, 18:3, 

25:14, 29:12, 29:15, 
30:7, 31:6

plus  [1] - 15:20
point  [7] - 5:16, 11:6, 

17:14, 20:21, 28:2, 
29:5, 29:19

pop  [1] - 25:22
porch  [3] - 9:13, 9:19, 

10:7
pose  [2] - 12:10, 13:6
positive  [2] - 30:11, 

30:14
possible  [1] - 15:13
possibly  [2] - 26:14, 

26:17
potential  [1] - 26:2
precedent  [1] - 13:9
preface  [1] - 31:12
premise  [2] - 27:15
prepared  [1] - 29:18
preservation  [2] - 

16:2, 27:19
preserve  [4] - 13:1, 

15:11, 15:14, 17:14
preserved  [1] - 12:4
preserving  [1] - 14:4
pretty  [4] - 8:22, 10:8, 

31:15
Pretty  [2] - 9:4, 9:5
price  [1] - 15:21
PRISBY  [5] - 8:20, 9:4, 

9:6, 26:22, 32:3
problem  [2] - 20:19, 

20:21
proceed  [1] - 16:7
proceedings  [1] - 

32:20
process  [3] - 14:17, 

28:15, 31:14
product  [1] - 7:18
project  [1] - 19:8
property  [10] - 4:13, 

4:22, 8:16, 13:15, 
16:9, 19:13, 21:1, 
21:20, 24:13, 26:16

proposed  [5] - 6:16, 
29:12, 29:15, 30:7, 
31:6

proposing  [1] - 8:4
public  [1] - 32:17
purpose  [1] - 17:20
purview  [1] - 27:21
pushed  [1] - 21:7
put  [2] - 5:6, 6:5

Q

quoin  [1] - 4:19

R

raised  [1] - 12:19
ranch  [1] - 24:4
Rancic 's [1] - 11:12
rare  [1] - 28:11
reality  [1] - 29:4
realize  [2] - 18:19, 

20:12
really  [12] - 5:13, 8:4, 

8:5, 8:14, 8:15, 9:16, 
14:8, 16:9, 17:2, 
21:9, 21:19, 27:8

Realtor  [1] - 23:2
Realtors  [1] - 22:20
reason  [4] - 12:22, 

18:10, 27:8, 31:11
reasonable  [1] - 24:22
rebuild  [1] - 15:10
recession  [1] - 27:8
reconstituted  [1] - 

28:14
reconstituting  [1] - 

27:18
record  [1] - 12:16
red  [6] - 19:20, 20:2, 

20:7, 20:18, 24:5, 
24:14

reflective  [1] - 10:16
rehab  [2] - 15:10
rehabable  [1] - 24:19
relation  [1] - 8:21
relative  [1] - 16:21
remembering  [1] - 

36

27:9
remind  [1] - 27:5
rendering  [2] - 6:16, 

9:22
renderings  [1] - 26:5
rendition  [1] - 8:10
replace  [1] - 15:1
report  [1] - 6:21
rest  [2] - 4:19, 13:6
retained  [1] - 10:4
review  [3] - 26:13, 

27:6, 27:22
risers  [1] - 6:10
road  [2] - 13:11, 19:7
Robert 's [1] - 30:16
roof  [1] - 7:22
room  [3] - 5:18, 7:7
rooms  [4] - 5:13, 7:3, 

7:10, 14:8
Rules  [1] - 30:17
runs  [1] - 20:11

S

sale  [1] - 19:13
sat  [1] - 11:2
saturated  [1] - 23:14
saw  [1] - 8:7
second  [4] - 29:22, 

30:2, 31:16, 31:18
security  [1] - 16:8
See  [1] - 5:9
see  [10] - 4:11, 5:22, 

9:6, 9:16, 21:8, 
23:10, 24:11, 24:14, 
27:14, 29:10

seeing  [1] - 15:18
sells  [1] - 23:3
separate  [1] - 28:1
setback  [1] - 9:13
setbacks  [1] - 7:16
setting  [1] - 13:9
shape  [1] - 7:12
shingle  [1] - 7:22
show  [2] - 6:15, 9:22
showed  [1] - 10:1
shrinks  [1] - 21:7
sick  [2] - 20:15, 20:18
side  [10] - 4:2, 5:19, 

6:12, 7:15, 10:22, 
11:17, 15:3, 17:1, 
23:15, 23:21

sideways  [1] - 5:7
significance  [1] - 5:4
significant  [1] - 23:22
sinks  [2] - 4:10, 15:2
site  [1] - 9:7
size  [3] - 10:8, 11:15, 

22:8
small  [4] - 4:1, 14:8, 

Attachment 1 - HPC 12.05.18 Minutes



13 of 13 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

15:6, 24:15
smaller  [3] - 10:18, 

11:18, 12:4
society  [2] - 20:10, 

27:13
sold  [1] - 15:20
someone  [2] - 24:12, 

30:14
sometimes  [1] - 22:18
south  [2] - 10:22, 17:1
southeast  [1] - 15:19
space  [2] - 15:15, 

21:12
spec  [2] - 23:4, 25:11
special  [1] - 5:9
specific  [1] - 23:10
specs  [1] - 25:11
spelled  [1] - 17:20
spot  [1] - 26:8
square  [1] - 21:5
staircase  [2] - 6:7, 7:6
stand  [1] - 25:8
standards  [1] - 15:9
start  [2] - 18:20, 30:14
starts  [1] - 10:7
steep  [1] - 6:8
still  [4] - 4:9, 5:2, 5:7, 

5:21
stone  [3] - 8:3, 25:18, 

25:19
straight  [1] - 32:14
Street  [5] - 10:20, 

10:22, 11:17, 17:1, 
22:7

street  [15] - 10:21, 
12:9, 12:17, 13:7, 
13:11, 13:17, 15:15, 
16:22, 17:6, 17:11, 
18:8, 18:9, 22:13, 
25:22

streets  [1] - 22:11
streetscape  [6] - 8:21, 

11:8, 11:16, 25:6, 
30:9, 31:10

stuff  [1] - 5:3
style  [3] - 22:4, 22:16, 

23:12
subject  [1] - 20:8
suburban  [1] - 4:17
sudden  [1] - 20:12
suggested  [1] - 23:2
suggestion  [1] - 24:22
supposed  [1] - 30:16
surface  [1] - 21:18
surprised  [3] - 6:20, 

8:17, 14:21

T

tall  [2] - 17:2, 17:3

tear  [3] - 12:22, 14:1, 
29:21

Texan  [1] - 22:16
themselves  [1] - 

25:10
thin  [1] - 5:5
Three  [1] - 7:15
three  [2] - 7:16, 16:13
thumbs  [1] - 5:6
Tiburan  [1] - 23:14
tired  [1] - 20:15
today  [3] - 6:3, 14:17, 

29:9
today 's [1] - 15:9
toilets  [2] - 4:9, 15:1
tonight  [1] - 8:11
took  [1] - 4:21
top  [1] - 4:20
torn  [2] - 11:7, 13:9
touched  [1] - 4:8
tough  [2] - 13:19
town  [1] - 20:8
towns  [2] - 28:3, 28:10
tract  [1] - 4:17
tract -looking  [1] - 

4:17
transformed  [1] - 

12:12
tree  [1] - 10:2
tried  [1] - 7:12
true  [1] - 20:4
truthfully  [1] - 14:7
trying  [2] - 6:17, 8:12
turn  [1] - 20:13
two  [5] - 4:5, 12:4, 

14:9, 29:10, 29:14
two-part  [1] - 29:10
type  [3] - 5:5, 19:21, 

25:17

U

under  [2] - 14:15, 
19:16

unfinished  [1] - 14:15
unfortunate  [2] - 20:9, 

28:13
unfortunately  [1] - 

26:12
unique  [1] - 11:20
up  [19] - 4:22, 5:21, 

7:1, 7:3, 7:5, 7:14, 
9:4, 9:5, 14:7, 14:22, 
16:17, 16:19, 21:7, 
23:15, 24:15, 24:16, 
25:2, 25:8

updates  [1] - 13:21
updating  [2] - 12:20, 

12:21
upstairs  [2] - 6:6, 7:8

37

usefulness  [1] - 25:2
user  [4] - 18:22, 19:3, 

19:12, 19:14
utilizing  [2] - 8:8, 

21:12

V

variances  [2] - 7:17, 
9:18

Village  [1] - 6:22
vote  [6] - 29:12, 29:13, 

30:11, 30:17, 30:18, 
30:19

W

waiving  [1] - 28:3
walk  [1] - 24:12
walked  [3] - 6:12, 7:2, 

22:13
walkway  [1] - 10:3
wall  [1] - 5:22
WEINBERGER  [6] - 

22:10, 26:18, 27:2, 
28:21, 31:16, 31:22

welcome  [1] - 13:13
well -said  [1] - 29:1
west  [1] - 8:21
white  [5] - 8:6, 20:3, 

20:16, 20:18, 22:19
whole  [5] - 7:22, 8:1, 

18:1, 21:9, 28:1
WILLIAMS  [9] - 9:12, 

9:15, 9:19, 17:13, 
17:22, 18:7, 18:17, 
26:10, 32:1

windows  [1] - 20:17
wonder  [1] - 18:12
wonderful  [1] - 15:17
wood  [6] - 5:5, 6:5, 

8:1, 8:2, 21:16, 22:8
Woodside  [2] - 7:14, 

15:16
worth  [1] - 14:4
wow  [1] - 17:7

Y

yard  [7] - 7:15, 8:13, 
8:14, 10:4, 10:9, 
21:8, 21:9

years  [4] - 8:18, 11:13, 
13:3, 23:15

yourself  [1] - 18:18
YU  [2] - 31:1, 31:4

Z

Zook  [4] - 11:22, 24:1, 
24:3, 24:6

Attachment 1 - HPC 12.05.18 Minutes



1

Chan Yu

From: Executive Director <Director@hinsdalehistory.org>
Sent: Thursday, January 31, 2019 10:21 AM
To: Chan Yu
Subject: Updates from the HHS
Attachments: HPC memo.docx

Hi Chan -  
 
Please find attached two reports (one doc) detailing the status of our Historic Plaque Program and the activities 
related to launching the Historic Tours App.  If you have any questions, please let me know.  I am planning on 
attending the meeting next Wednesday to provide any clarification to the committee. 
 
Thanks! 
 
 
Lynne Mickle Smaczny 
Executive Director 
Hinsdale Historical Society 
Hinsdale, Illinois 
630-789-2600 
www.hinsdalehistory.org 
 



To:  Hinsdale Historic Preservation Commission 

From: Hinsdale Historical Society 

Date: January 30, 2019 

Re: Project Update – Historic Plaque Program 

The Hinsdale Historical Society is set to launch the reinstatement of our Historic Plaque program in 

March 2019.  Our program is completely honorary in nature; displaying one of our plaques will not 

entitle the homeowner to any benefits other than the acknowledgement that they live in an historic home. 

The launch will include contacting over 400 homes (and downtown business buildings) that have been 

identified as being at least 100 years old and that do not already have one of our plaques.  This mailer will 

likely include a letter and potentially an insert/brochure informational piece.  We are currently in the 

process of finalizing details of these materials as well as the information on our website, press releases, 

and other social medias outlets. 

The plaques will be the same as those done in the 1980s since they will be manufactured by the same 

company.  They are cast bronze, oval shaped, and measure approximately 5” high x 6.5” wide.  Each is 

custom-cast with the construction date of the house and the Hinsdale Historical Society’s name.  It is 

recommended that plaques be mounted where they can be viewed from the sidewalk.  The plaques will 

cost $300 for HHS Members and $350 for Non-Members (which will include a one-year HHS Family 

membership). 

Homeowners will be able to apply for a plaque, providing as much information as known, and HHS will 

verify the information.  The building’s construction date must be accurately researched and verified, and 

if known, the original owner and architect would be listed. Owners will be encouraged to research the 

history of their own homes, but HHS will conduct the research for them for an additional fee of $40. 

For those houses approved, owners will receive the plaque and a certificate acknowledging the build date 

of the home.  If HHS conducted the research on the home, a written history of the building will be 

provided. 

We will clearly acknowledge and state that our program is not affiliated with the Village of Hinsdale’s 

Historic Preservation Commission and does not specifically lead to or guarantee Local Landmark status. 

It will be clear that participation in our program does not in any way assist in applying for the State of 

Illinois’ Property Tax Assessment Freeze Program, nor is it affiliated with the National Register of 

Historic Places administered by the U.S. National Park Service. 

  



To:  Hinsdale Historic Preservation Commission 

From: Hinsdale Historical Society 

Date: January 30, 2019 

Re: Project Update – Historic Tours App 

Hinsdale’s first historic tours app “HistoricalTourist: Hinsdale” was successfully launched in May 2019.  

The initial marketing effort started with a postcard mailer to over 700 addresses in Hinsdale and the 

surrounding communities.  We also marketed it on social media, hung storefront posters, staked yard 

signs, and had a large sign posted in Burlington Park. 

The initial launch event was held at the KLM Lodge in conjunction with our annual Women’s Board 

Kitchen Walk on May 11th.  The Open House was a designated stop on the VIP Trolley route, but all were 

welcome.  Over 150 people stopped by to learn about the app and it’s tours of Zook-related sites.  The 

app was open for viewing on various devices and we assisted many with downloading it to their own. 

On June 3rd, we held an Ice Cream Social at Dips & Dogs – one of the stops on the Downtown Zook tour.  

Over 75 people stopped by, and we rewarded each app download with a free ice cream treat.  App 

promotion continued throughout the summer with postcard distribution and viewings at local 

community events.  We had a tent/table at the Farmer’s Market three times, at one day of the Fine Arts 

Festival (where intern Matt Stockmal gave several downtown tours), and twice at Uniquely Thursdays. 

Other opportunities to promote the app have included a children’s version of our “Take a Look at Zook” 

program in June at the Hinsdale Public Library and an adult presentation of the same at the DuPage 

County Historical Museum in January.  The latter complimented their current exhibit “DuPage 

Architects”, which opened August 11th and closes June 8th.  We loaned several artifacts and photos for 

display, along with the video of the Zook Home & Studio relocation.  Postcards were distributed at all 

programs and are available at DCHM. 

Based on the app analytics as well as voiced opinions, the app has been well received.  Specific data 

provided by Apple and Google differs greatly, making it hard to compare and provide concise numbers, 

but we know that the app has been downloaded at least 218 times between May and December 2018. 

We continue to promote the app on our website, through social media, and at all our programs and 

events.  Zook related programs are being scheduled for 2019, including “Take a Look at Zook” (adult 

version) at the Library in May and a bike/hike event utilizing the app in July.  We still have a significant 

number of postcards for that can be distributed, and there is $42.56 left of the HPC $5,000 grant that could 

be used toward further marketing initiatives. 

The next tour offerings have not been decided, as to what or when, although we had a pair of summer 

college interns draft some suggested routes based on previous tours created by HPC and HHS and their 

own research conducted for the historic plaque program.  The committee will likely meet in Spring 

discuss and plan the next tour offering. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   February 6, 2019 

TO:   Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Discussion Item - Village of Hinsdale Historic Preservation Regulations Review 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

During the summer of 2018 a review of the Village’s Historic Preservation regulations was conducted.  
Two of the main objectives of the analysis were to examine the Certificate of Appropriateness and 
landmark withdrawal processes.  As a result of this review, a report was prepared (See Attachment 1, 
Village of Hinsdale Historic Preservation Regulations Review) and forwarded to the trustees for 
comment. 
 
As a result of these discussions, it is being suggested that a number of recommendations from the 
report be implemented. The remainder of this memorandum will identify and describe the proposed 
amendments to the historic preservation regulations. The proposed changes to the regulations are 
broken down into two categories, Certificates of Appropriateness and Landmark Withdrawal.  The final 
section of the report addresses establishment of a new type of landmark designation. 
 
On January 9, 2019, the HPC listened to 3 builders, representing themselves as homeowners, during the 
public comment period in regards to this discussion item.  The 3 public comments reflected concerns for 
the effect on the homeowners, home builders and potential buyers in the neighborhood, in regards to 
economic impact/real estate prices. The HPC continued the discussion on this item for the next meeting. 
 
Request and Analysis 

Certificate of Appropriateness 
1. Costs associated with consideration of a Certificate of Appropriateness (CofA) – currently the 

fee for a CofA is $50.  It is recommended that a new fee amount of $800 be established to cover 
the Village’s costs associated with CofA.  Of this total $350 would be the application fee and 
$450 would be an escrow to cover the costs related to the preparation and publication cost of 
legal notice, recording and preparation of minutes and, drafting of formal findings.  

 
2. Properties to be subject to a CofA review – CofA reviews should be limited to only the following 

types of properties: 
a. Contributing structures in the Robbins Park Historic District (232 properties). 
b. All  structures in the Downtown Historic District (74 properties). 
c. Individually designated landmarks (28 properties).  
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Based on this change, it would eliminate 136 non-contributing structures in the Robbins Park 
Historic District  from being subject to CofA reviews.   

 
3. Additional CofA relief for contributing structures and individually designated structures – only 

proposed improvements that are visible from the public right-of-way would be subject to CofA 
review by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC).  All other CofA requests would be subject 
to review and approval by staff. Patios and fences would not require a CofA.   

 
4. Appeals of HPC denials of CofA – it is being recommended that the HPC has final approval 

authority over granting or denying all CofA.  Currently, its authority is final only in the case of 
individual historic landmarks; HPC authority is only advisory for structures in the two historic 
districts. 

 
Although expanding the HPC decision making authority to include all final approvals, an appeal process 
to the Village Board is necessary. To accomplish this it is recommended that specific standards for 
considering appeals be established.  The standards include the following: 

a. No new evidence can be presented in front of the Village Board. 
b. An applicant must file an appeal within 30 days of the date of the HPC decision. 

 
Withdrawal of Landmark Designation 

1. Conditions for Withdrawal – it is being recommended that Section 14-4-1 Conditions for 
Withdrawal be amended to add the following requirements. More specifically, the following 
items relate to a withdrawal based on financial hardship. 

a. Submittal of the following documents. 
i. Federal Tax returns from the previous three (3) calendar years. 

ii. Proof that the property has been on the market for a minimum of the previous 
12 months. 

b. The property has not benefitted from the State of Illinois Property Tax Assessment 
Freeze Program. 

 
Finally, with respect to process, requests for withdrawal will be reviewed by the Village Manager, the 
chair of the Zoning and Public Safety, and the chair of the Historic Preservation Commission with their 
recommendation subsequently considered by the Village Board.  This differs from the current procedure 
in which the HPC considers withdrawal requests, with its recommendations then forwarded to the 
Village Board. 
 
New Landmark Designation 

1. Establish a new landmark category – in order to accomplish the dual goals of 
encouraging property owners to landmark their properties and at the same time 
lessening the requirements governing them, i.e. withdrawal, it is recommended that a 
new category of landmarks be established.  This would be an “honorary landmark 
designation”.  The benefit of this type of honorific status would allow for historic 
designation without the being subject to CofA and withdrawal requirements. 
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2. Standards for granting honorary landmark – at a public hearing the HPC shall review all 
information presented to it and adopt a recommendation as to whether a property has 
features in its of its exterior architectural appearance that should be protected and 
preserved; 

 

Process 

Once the recommendations are reviewed and approved by the HPC, staff will incorporate the changes 
into Title 14 and bring it back for review and any further comment. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 – Village of Hinsdale Historic Preservation Regulations Review  
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